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          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Good

          3  afternoon, everybody, and welcome to today's hearing

          4  by the Committee on Economic Development. My name is

          5  Council Member Jerome O'Donovan from Staten Island,

          6  and I chair the City's Council's Economic

          7  Development Committee.

          8                 I want to introduce those members of

          9  the Committee here now. We have Councilman Martin

         10  Golden from Brooklyn, we have two Councilpersons

         11  downstairs who will be right up, Ronnie Eldridge

         12  from Manhattan and Ken Fisher from Brooklyn also. We

         13  also have with us Councilwoman Chris Quinn from

         14  Manhattan, who requested this hearing.

         15                 Those persons wishing to provide

         16  testimony, please get an appearance card in the

         17  back, fill it out and provide it to the

         18  Sergeant-At-Arms.

         19                 Today we will be conducting a hearing

         20  on the potential loss of jobs at the Bell Atlantic

         21  in the New York City area.

         22                 In March of this year Bell Atlantic

         23  announced the closing of two accounting department

         24  offices in New York City, one office in Manhattan

         25  and one office in Brooklyn, which performed Bell
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          2  Atlantic's accounting functions, including payroll

          3  and customer billing operations.

          4                 According to information provided to

          5  the Committee, these offices operations are to be

          6  relocated to Pennsylvania and Massachusetts. The two

          7  offices employed 203 Bell Atlantic workers, members

          8  of the Communication Workers of America, CWA, who

          9  approximately earned between $39,000 to $42,000 plus

         10  benefits.

         11                 According to a study commissioned by

         12  CWA, the 70 percent of the workers were African

         13  American women, 85 percent were persons of color and

         14  91 percent were 46 years of age or older.

         15                 As a result of the closing, these

         16  workers had been reassigned to other Bell Atlantic

         17  operations who have taken early retirement.

         18                 During the 1997 merger process of

         19  Bell Atlantic and NYNEX, the New York State Public

         20  Service Commission, PSC, issued an order approving

         21  the merger with the conditions that "existing major

         22  New York telephone or NYNEX functions shall not be

         23  relocated outside of the New York State.

         24                 CWA has indicated that it is

         25  preparing to file a petition with the PSC regarding
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          2  this potential violation of the merger order.

          3                 It is also the Committee's

          4  understanding that CWA has filed a complaint with

          5  the National Labor Relations Board against Bell

          6  Atlantic claiming an unfair labor practice because

          7  it failed to mention the office closures during the

          8  1998 negotiation on a new collective bargaining

          9  agreement.

         10                 This matter is currently before an

         11  administrative law judge for a decision after a

         12  trial last week.

         13                 While the Committee has no authority

         14  over the subject matter before the PSC and the NLRB,

         15  we wish to explore the nature of the issue and

         16  highlight potential issues raised to the City of New

         17  York by this action.

         18                 At this time I would like to

         19  recognize Council Member Quinn of Manhattan for her

         20  statement.

         21                 Council Member.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you very

         23  much, Council Member O'Donovan.

         24                 First I just want to thank the chair

         25  for holding this hearing in general and a very, very
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          2  timely and quick manner, so I appreciate that.

          3  Approximately 60 of the jobs in question are in my

          4  district, so I appreciate the attention. I also just

          5  want to thank Michael and Todd on the staff for

          6  working so closely with my office on this issue.

          7                 You know, the reason we are holding

          8  this hearing or the reason we thought we were

          9  holding this hearing was to explore with the workers

         10  and the union and the company Bell Atlantic, explore

         11  what was going on, why an agreement had been made

         12  with the PSC not to move major functions out of New

         13  York City but yet that is occurring.

         14                 We wanted to as the legislative body

         15  dialogue and discuss and do oversight with Bell

         16  Atlantic and get answers to questions like, why did

         17  you negotiate for eight months with CWA for a

         18  contract for these very workers and never say you

         19  might move some of your functions and 15 days later,

         20  15 days after eight months of negotiations the

         21  company announced that they were going to move these

         22  operations to Pennsylvania. And I just want to

         23  reiterate what the Chair said, that this move is

         24  clearly a violation of the agreement that Bell

         25  Atlantic and NYNEX entered into with the PSC where
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          2  they agreed not to move major functions out of the

          3  City. I think clearly, whether you are a worker or

          4  management or anything else, payroll is a major

          5  function. Everybody gets paid, it is probably the

          6  biggest function in any organization.

          7                 I also want to just reiterate that we

          8  are getting involved, the City Council, although we

          9  have no direct authority as it relates to PSC

         10  because the loss of jobs in New York City is a

         11  growing and growing and spiraling problem. And

         12  although we might have heard from the company in

         13  question today, Bell Atlantic, that it is all okay

         14  because these workers have retired or they have

         15  gotten other jobs, that really misses the point

         16  because what will happen is that these jobs, these

         17  200 plus jobs will be gone forever.

         18                 The people will move into new jobs,

         19  but those 200 jobs where they were are gone. They

         20  will never come back. So, we will, even if these 200

         21  people are taken care of, be down 200 jobs.

         22  Two-hundred jobs which the City does not appear in

         23  its economy to be recreating. And that I really

         24  think is the issue that we would most have liked to

         25  explore with Bell Atlantic, why they didn't
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          2  negotiate in good faith, why they are making this

          3  move against the agreement and why they seem on some

          4  level unconcerned that 200 less New Yorkers will be

          5  employed.

          6                 But tragically, Bell Atlantic will

          7  not be sitting at the witness table today, only

          8  those impacted by their actions will.

          9                 Bell Atlantic has given us testimony,

         10  the Chair will read it into the record, but I think

         11  their actions today clearly show why the Chair's

         12  intervention in calling this hearing was so

         13  necessary. Because just like they didn't bargain in

         14  good faith for those eight months. They have refused

         15  today to engage in a dialogue with the legislative

         16  body of the city where they are based.

         17                 So, I want to thank all of you who

         18  are here who have taken time out from your work day,

         19  thank you for coming. And just to express my extreme

         20  dismay and terrible disappointment in Bell Atlantic,

         21  for although they have staff here today, not willing

         22  to step to the plate and publicly talk and dialogue

         23  and admit what is happening.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  Council Member.

          3                 We are also joined by Council Member

          4  Angel Rodriguez from Brooklyn, Council Member Ronnie

          5  Eldridge from Manhattan and Councilman Steve

          6  DiBrienza from Brooklyn.

          7                 It is my understanding that Bell

          8  Atlantic has decided not to provide testimony at

          9  today's hearing because of the ongoing litigation

         10  involving this matter, but has submitted a written

         11  statement to be made part of the record.

         12                 At this time I will let Legal Counsel

         13  to the Committee, Mr. Todd Turner, read this

         14  statement into the record, and then we will call our

         15  first witness.

         16                 Mr. Turner.

         17                 MR. TURNER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 First, I won't read both, there are

         19  two letters addressed to Chairman O'Donovan, dated

         20  October 14th, 1999. I will read the cover letter and

         21  submit the other letter into the record.

         22                 Dear Chairman O'Donovan, during the

         23  past several months Bell Atlantic has fully

         24  explained its position on the issue to the

         25  Communications Workers of America and in meetings
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          2  with legislators and community leaders. However, the

          3  union has chose to litigate this matter.

          4                 Since the litigation is still pending

          5  and a hearing is scheduled for tomorrow, we must

          6  respectively decline the opportunity to testify

          7  before the City Council Committee on Economic

          8  Development.

          9                 Attached is a letter I sent to

         10  concerned elected officials earlier this year,

         11  articulating the Corporation's position on this

         12  issue.

         13                 Sincerely, William S. Floyd, who is

         14  the Staff Director for the Regulatory and Government

         15  Affairs Office.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

         17  Counsel.

         18                 We will call first Venice Booker, CWA

         19  Local 1100, and Gail Murcott, President of Local

         20  1100. Trina Miller-Baldwin, Local 1100 and Lorna

         21  Jirves, Local 1100, CWA.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Mr.

         23  Chairman, if I may be heard as they are settling

         24  into the witness table?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: I am

          3  wondering if Counsel could, before we are done, sort

          4  of just review our own rules as to whether or not

          5  this Committee could somehow formally, or

          6  informally, express our displeasure with Bell

          7  Atlantic, their lack of cooperation. This is a major

          8  corporate entity here in this City and to simply

          9  hide behind this government affairs puff piece is

         10  unacceptable and unfortunate, and I think that we

         11  should somehow express our displeasure to the

         12  Committee for their obvious disrespect to the

         13  process.

         14                 So, I don't know what mechanism we

         15  have, it may just be simply the sentiment on the

         16  record by all of us as members, but if there is

         17  something I think it would be appropriate.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Yes, we will

         19  review that. I think you are absolutely correct.

         20  Let's hear some testimony first and then other

         21  Council Members I know will have some comments.

         22                 Good afternoon. Would you introduce

         23  yourself for the record, please? Who would like to

         24  start?

         25                 Go ahead, Ma'am.
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          2                 Speak into the microphone, please.

          3                 Sergeant, see if it is on.

          4                 MS. MURCOTT: I am Gail Murcott,

          5  President of Communication Workers of America, Local

          6  1100.

          7                 MS. JIRVES: My name is Lorna Jirves,

          8  I am the Executive Treasurer for Local 1100.

          9                 MS. BOOKER: My name is Venice

         10  Macherie Booker, I am Co-Chair of 1100's building at

         11  395 Flatbush Avenue Extension.

         12                 MS. MILLER-BALDWIN: My name is Trina

         13  Miller-Baldwin, and I am a rep for 1100.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay, Madam

         15  President, before you start, let me just read the

         16  statistics here. It says 70 percent of the workers

         17  affected here are African-American women; is that

         18  correct?

         19                 MS. MURCOTT: Yes, sir.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Eighty-five

         21  are persons of color?

         22                 MS. MURCOTT: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: And 91 percent

         24  were 46 years of age or older?

         25                 MS. MURCOTT: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: And as a

          3  result of the closing, all of these workers have

          4  been reassigned to other Bell Atlantic operations,

          5  or they have retired?

          6                 MS. MURCOTT: Yes, sir. Forced to

          7  retire.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Forced to

          9  retire. How many people retired, do you know?

         10                 MS. MURCOTT: Seventy-five and 55,

         11  125; is that correct? About 125 retired.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay. And if

         13  this move had not taken place, obviously they would

         14  still be working, right?

         15                 MS. MURCOTT: Yes, for the most part.

         16  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay.

         18                 Go ahead, please, with your

         19  testimony.

         20                 MS. MURCOTT: Good afternoon. I am

         21  Gail Murcott, President of the Communication Workers

         22  of America, Local 1100. I am here today foremost to

         23  thank you for the support and encouragement you have

         24  shown me and the members of the Local. What was done

         25  to us by this corporate giant Bell Atlantic, can and
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          2  will affect all of us, if we fail to stand together

          3  in unity.

          4                 In January 1998, Bell Atlantic and

          5  the CWA began early bargaining sessions. Our

          6  contract was to expire in August 1998. Bargaining

          7  was long and hard and it even resulted in a two-day

          8  strike, but when we finally settled, I felt that

          9  this was one of the best contracts that was ever

         10  negotiated for my local.

         11                 We were able to add significant

         12  increases to our wages and pension bands.

         13                 I enthusiastically met with our

         14  members to review our newly negotiated contract.

         15  Little did I know that a few days later the company

         16  would call a meeting to inform my executive board

         17  and I that they would be closing two of our offices.

         18                 Our payroll work, 55 jobs, would be

         19  transferred to Upper Darby, Pennsylvania, and our

         20  revenue accounting work, 148 jobs, would be

         21  transferred to Braintree, Massachusetts. Two-hundred

         22  and three job wiped out. Not one word of their plan

         23  was mentioned at the Bargaining table.

         24                 Many of our members were forced to

         25  accept retirement, rather than face the challenge of
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          2  finding a new job, and the uncertainty of retaining

          3  the wages that they had worked more than 25 years to

          4  obtain.

          5                 The company has refused to bargain

          6  this move with the union. The National Labor

          7  Relations Board has issued a complaint against Bell

          8  Atlantic, and the trial began on October 6th, 1999.

          9                 I know that justice will prevail but

         10  we cannot wait for the long legal process. We must

         11  right the wrong that was done to us now.

         12                 Our members built this company, these

         13  are our jobs. It is wrong to move our jobs from the

         14  inner-city of New York to the suburbs of

         15  Massachusetts and Pennsylvania.

         16                 What we are seeking is justice and we

         17  want it now. Please help us obtain it.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 MS. JIRVES: Good afternoon. My name

         20  is Lorna Jirves. I am the Executive Treasurer of

         21  Local 1100, and a Bell Atlantic employee. I have

         22  been employed by Bell Atlantic for 28 years. I am a

         23  mother of three children and a grandmother of three

         24  beautiful granddaughters.

         25                 I have raised the family, bought a
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          2  home, my youngest son is attending college, his

          3  major is computer science, and I am helping my other

          4  children with my granddaughters.

          5                 I would not have been able to do

          6  these things if I didn't have the opportunity of

          7  being employed by Bell Atlantic.

          8                 In 1998, the union negotiated the

          9  best contract this local has ever had - large wage

         10  increases and pension band increases. The executives

         11  of Local 1100 went out and told our membership of

         12  the wonderful contract that was negotiated for them.

         13  Two weeks later the company management came to our

         14  union headquarters and informed us they were closing

         15  two of our offices. Both offices are in City limits.

         16  One office is 395 Flatbush Avenue extension. These

         17  jobs are going to Braintree Massachusetts. This

         18  affects 148 employees.

         19                 The other office is 1166 Avenue of

         20  Americas. These jobs are going to Darby,

         21  Pennsylvania. This affects 55 employees. That is a

         22  total of 203 jobs leaving the City.

         23                 The company seems to feel the loss of

         24  these City jobs are not going to affect the

         25  community. They are wrong. These jobs are not going
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          2  to be replaced. I gave a copy of a Facts sheet

          3  prepared by CWA, this will make the facts clearer.

          4                 My oldest son is 29 years old. He has

          5  two children. He works long, hard hours to make ends

          6  meet. His benefits are not paid by the company he is

          7  employed with. This limits the quality time he has

          8  to spend with his family.

          9                 It is these kinds of jobs out there

         10  for our young people. If we keep allowing companies

         11  like Bell Atlantic to shift jobs out of the city's

         12  -- out of our City communities and into the

         13  suburbs, then our children and our grandchildren

         14  will not have the opportunities we were afforded.

         15                 They would not be able to buy homes,

         16  cars or send their children to college. I ask your

         17  help. As a mother, grandmother and concerned

         18  citizen, stop Bell Atlantic from shifting jobs. Make

         19  them understand why they get tax breaks and other

         20  advantages to keep costs down. These jobs are needed

         21  in our communities. Stop the madness and protect the

         22  future of our children and our grandchildren.

         23                 I am at the end of my career, let our

         24  young people have a career. Please stop Bell

         25  Atlantic.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Before we go

          4  on, Madam President, in my opening remarks I noted

          5  that during the 1997 merger process of Bell Atlantic

          6  and New York NEX, NYNEX, that New York State Public

          7  Service Commission issued an order approving the

          8  merger with the condition that existing major New

          9  York Telephone or New York NEX functions shall not

         10  be relocated outside New York State; is that

         11  correct?

         12                 MS. MURCOTT: Yes, sir, it is.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Is this part

         14  of the lawsuit that you are referring to, these

         15  words, these statements by the PSC? I mean,

         16  obviously they violated the agreement, didn't they?

         17                 MS. MURCOTT: Yes, they did.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay. I

         19  understand your legal attorney is coming on later?

         20                 MS. MURCOTT: He is better qualified

         21  to speak than I am on that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay.

         23  Continue. Is that the testimony? Does anybody else

         24  have anything to say?

         25                 MS. MILLER-BALDWIN: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: You, Ma'am?

          3                 MS. MILLER-BALDWIN: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Go ahead.

          5                 MS. MILLER-BALDWIN: Good afternoon.

          6  My name is Trina Miller-Baldwin. I have been

          7  employed for Bell Atlantic for 28 years. I live in

          8  the Bedford Stuyvesant section of Brooklyn for 34

          9  years, where I raised my children, a son and a

         10  daughter.

         11                 I was 24 years old when I got my job

         12  at the telephone company through an employment

         13  agency. I was very excited about getting a

         14  good-paying job with benefits. I worked in a toy

         15  factory with no benefits and could be laid off

         16  whenever they wanted to. There was no union. A job

         17  at the telephone meant a lot to me.

         18                 In the past years the salaries were

         19  competitive and NYNEX was able to attract and keep

         20  the employees they needed. I worked hard for the

         21  company and in return received excellent health care

         22  and job security. That was until now. Now my job is

         23  threatened.

         24                 When our office is closed, Bell

         25  Atlantic may shift the employees into possible lower
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          2  paying jobs throughout the five boroughs and Long

          3  Island. I am afraid we will be shifted into lower

          4  paying jobs and eventually laid off with no pension

          5  or benefits.

          6                 After all of our dedication to Bell

          7  Atlantic for so many years, this would be

          8  devastating.

          9                 It's not what we have come to expect

         10  from Bell Atlantic. Our local has bargained long

         11  hours for us. We are not sure if we will get another

         12  contract. I have been in the union since I started

         13  working here and we, along with the local, have

         14  worked hard to make our union strong and to protect

         15  and expect good jobs at Bell Atlantic.

         16                 For example, last year we went out on

         17  strike August of 1998. At that time we negotiated a

         18  very good contract. They upgraded everyone's job. We

         19  won, and then two weeks later Bell Atlantic said "We

         20  have decided to end your jobs." We were in shock. We

         21  said, "These are jobs we have fought so hard for."

         22  Many people took the early retirement package

         23  because they were scared.

         24                 I planned to work ten more years

         25  until retirement. I was looking forward to working
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          2  until retirement. I like my job and I enjoy working.

          3  Now my future is uncertain because Bell Atlantic has

          4  shut down the office I work in.

          5                 The job I do is called Bill Day

          6  Investigates. I investigate money the customers owe

          7  and apply it to the right account. I read bills

          8  completely, and have been able to help others

          9  understand their bill which has included my

         10  neighbors who are seniors.

         11                 I am an asset to my company because

         12  of the many years I have devoted to it. Now Bell

         13  Atlantic forces me to take another job that I am not

         14  trained for. After 28 years I will have to learn a

         15  new job. The company may only offer me a job that is

         16  very far from my home.

         17                 I would like to tell you that through

         18  the competitive salary I earned at Bell Atlantic, I

         19  was able to send my daughter to college and purchase

         20  a home. My daughter has a master's degree in

         21  counseling from Long Island University, and is

         22  presently employed by the Board of Education as

         23  guidance counselor. In June 1998 she was named

         24  Guidance Counselor of the Year for the district she

         25  works in. I am very proud of her achievements.
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          2  Without this job, I would not have been able to do

          3  this.

          4                 I feel it is simply unfair to the

          5  employees to transfer our jobs to the suburban

          6  areas. I think Bell Atlantic is transferring my job

          7  and the jobs of my co-workers out of our community

          8  in order to pay lower salaries.

          9                 These jobs at Bell Atlantic have

         10  provided an important opportunity for me and my

         11  co-workers who are predominantly women of color. Why

         12  is the company choosing to take these jobs away from

         13  us and move them to predominately white suburbs in

         14  Massachusetts and Pennsylvania. It is clear to me

         15  and my co-workers that Bell Atlantic has no respect

         16  for the years and energy we have given to them.

         17                 With the work being transferred we

         18  must rearrange our lives because of the jobs in

         19  different locations and the shifts.

         20                 They could even ask us to work night

         21  shift, even though some of us never have. I feel we

         22  have no safety net after investing so many years in

         23  the company. What will I do next?

         24                 I will not be able to go out and get

         25  another job like this one. I would be lucky to get a
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          2  job at KFC. They might even say I am too old. As we

          3  all know, there is no longer a welcoming place in

          4  low-skill, high-wage jobs for individuals who have

          5  not refined their talents for this economy.

          6                 I am afraid we will not have any jobs

          7  in the coming years.

          8                 Once the jobs are transferred, there

          9  will be no jobs in our community for our children or

         10  the young people in our community who need jobs.

         11                 I would like to say to Bell Atlantic

         12  once again, that I have worked long and hard for

         13  this company for 28 years, now my future is

         14  uncertain. Please realize that these are not just

         15  jobs you are transferring or taking away. These are

         16  the lives of the people who have been faithful to

         17  your company.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

         19  Ma'am.

         20                 You don't hint, you say that

         21  obviously it has been mentioned here before, I

         22  mentioned it, that the majority of the workers are

         23  women, 90 percent, 91 percent, and the majority of

         24  them are of color, African-American women, and you

         25  mentioned they are going to move the operation to
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          2  Massachusetts and to Pennsylvania. Are you implying

          3  that there is a method here that is discriminating

          4  against women and women of color?

          5                 MS. MILLER-BALDWIN: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay.

          7                 Ma'am.

          8                 MS. MACHERIE BOOKER: My name is

          9  Venice Macherie Booker, and I reside in Queens, New

         10  York.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Incidentally,

         12  we are joined by Councilman Adolpho Carrion, from

         13  the Bronx.

         14                 I am sorry, go ahead.

         15                 MS. MACHERIE BOOKER: My name is

         16  Venice Macherie Booker and I reside in Queens, New

         17  York.

         18                 I am a member of CWA Local 1100 and

         19  have served as shop steward, co-chair and am present

         20  acting chairperson of the building in which I work,

         21  395 Flatbush Avenue Extension.

         22                 I first started to work for the

         23  telephone company in 1969 as an operator. Due to a

         24  family emergency I left in '70 to return in '71 to

         25  the Brooklyn accounting office, where I am still
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          2  employed.

          3                 I have been proud to work for such a

          4  promising company where I have been able to raise

          5  four children as head of household after the death

          6  of my husband at an early age in 1977.

          7                 My job offered me status and to keep

          8  a standard of quality of life above the poverty

          9  level. I was able to help my daughter get her

         10  master's degree and become an educator and also help

         11  my son and daughter continue as college-bound

         12  students, meaning their last year of high school was

         13  their first year of college.

         14                 My job for New York Tel, NYNEX and

         15  now Bell Atlantic, have included titles of acting

         16  accounting clerk, control clerk, I have been on a

         17  self-management team, acting supervisor, facilitator

         18  or trainer. These positions I held very proudly

         19  because CWA, Local 1100, and the company bargained

         20  in good faith as an incentive to union members and

         21  their employees.

         22                 Wherever I went I was very proud to

         23  say when asked that I worked for the Bell Telephone

         24  Company. It meant status and prestige as a working

         25  class person.
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          2                 On August 25th, '98 it was a complete

          3  shock when it was announced that 395 Flatbush Avenue

          4  Extension Brooklyn's Office would be closed and the

          5  work would be sent to Braintree Massachusetts. Jobs

          6  would be gone forever. No more accounting in

          7  Brooklyn, New York. Jobs that my family, and perhaps

          8  yours, would never obtain. Good-paying jobs that

          9  mean a lot to the downtown district and taxes for

         10  the City.

         11                 I intended to work to the Year 2000

         12  since I have undertaken the responsibility of

         13  raising two grandchildren that are extremely bright

         14  science and math students to reach their goals.

         15                 I elected to retire and receive my

         16  pension so as to be assured that some monies would

         17  be available to keep them, to help them out

         18  somewhat.

         19                 However, I am very sad to leave at

         20  this time under duress.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Any questions?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Councilwoman.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Really to

         25  anyone that can answer it. I just want to make sure
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          2  I understand you. You all negotiated your contract

          3  for eight months or so?

          4                 MS. MURCOTT: Yes, starting January

          5  through August.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Then no mention

          7  during that eight-month period -- it was never

          8  mentioned during that eight-month period that the

          9  accounting and payroll departments were going to be

         10  moved out of Manhattan and Brooklyn.

         11                 MS. MURCOTT: No mention at all.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And no one

         13  mentioned that 205 jobs would be lost?

         14                 MS. MURCOTT: That's true.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And no one from

         16  Bell Atlantic might mention that people might have

         17  to take early retirement?

         18                 MS. MURCOTT: That's true also.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You have been

         20  through other negotiations, correct?

         21                 MS. MURCOTT: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Would you say

         23  that it is typical during negotiations that if

         24  management is planning on closing offices or

         25  eliminating jobs that they share that during the
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          2  negotiation process? Is that typically appropriate

          3  behavior for management?

          4                 MS. MURCOTT: Well, they should. I

          5  mean, that is an eight-month process, it certainly

          6  gave them the period of time in which to do that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So that would

          8  be something that you as a part of the union would

          9  expect that there was that type of good faith going

         10  on?

         11                 MS. MURCOTT: Definitely.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, for then 15

         13  days later to be notified that the company was going

         14  to in fact move all of the jobs, people whose

         15  contract should just negotiate it out of the city,

         16  that is an atypical type of negotiation at best,

         17  wouldn't you say?

         18                 MS. MURCOTT: A typical?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Atypical.

         20                 MS. MURCOTT: Oh.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Not typical.

         22                 MS. MURCOTT: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I am being

         24  kind.

         25                 So, typically when a union, when you
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          2  leave the room and you have a contract, you think

          3  you have a contract until that contract is up?

          4                 MS. MURCOTT: Yes, as a matter of

          5  fact, we had negotiated in the contract, as I had

          6  said the best contract that I believe was ever

          7  negotiated from my local, we got significant

          8  increases, pension bands --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And how long

         10  was the contract you negotiated?

         11                 MS. MURCOTT: It was a three-year

         12  contract.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, it wasn't a

         14  14-day contract?

         15                 MS. MURCOTT: No.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Or 15 days was

         17  not -- I just want to understand. My sense was this

         18  was not how things were usually done, but thank you

         19  for clarifying.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Yes, when

         21  Legal Counsel comes, we can discuss that at length.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  I am joined

         24  by Councilwoman Freed from Manhattan. Councilwoman.

         25                 Councilman Golden. Or Councilman
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          2  Rodriguez.

          3                 Councilman Rodriguez.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I just have

          5  a few questions, and as I was listening to the

          6  testimony. We have a letter here that was written by

          7  Mr. Floyd, so some of the things are not the same

          8  and I just wanted some clarification.

          9                 I guess Ms. Lorna Jirves; is that the

         10  name? You mentioned there were tax breaks, and as I

         11  look through the testimony, this Committee generally

         12  deals with issues of tax abatement and tax breaks

         13  that are given to companies and you mention that in

         14  your testimony and I didn't hear that before.

         15                 Can someone here elaborate on the tax

         16  breaks Bell Atlantic got, and if you got any as a

         17  result of --

         18                 MS. JIRVES: It was just an assessment

         19  that I made myself, no specific information I got

         20  from anywhere.

         21                 I know that the City tries to keep

         22  meaningful employment in the City limits, and I am

         23  sure that for the larger companies they make

         24  different accommodations for them to be able to stay

         25  within the City, maybe not charge them as much or
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          2  gives them some type of break in, if not taxes,

          3  something else.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Generally

          5  --

          6                 MS. JIRVES: All I am saying generally

          7  is that I am sure that the City makes it attractive

          8  for large companies to stay within the City limits

          9  so the people that live in a City would be able to

         10  become employed.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Do you know

         12  anything about any specific tax breaks?

         13                 Generally what happens is your

         14  observation is correct, generally certain companies

         15  enter into certain agreements that say that they

         16  will keep a certain number of employees in the City

         17  and for that they will get certain tax breaks. I

         18  don't know that that happened with Bell Atlantic,

         19  does the Union know anything about that? Or does

         20  someone from the Committee know?

         21                 MR. TURNER: For the last two

         22  reporting periods for Local Law 69 in 1993, the City

         23  is required to report the tax benefits over

         24  $250,000, and which deals with either retaining or

         25  bringing in jobs. During that period of time there
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          2  was no report. The report recovers a seven-year

          3  period, fiscal period, so it would go back seven

          4  years to determine whether or not the City was

          5  giving any benefits to the company, a review of that

          6  found that Bell Atlantic did not receive anything.

          7                 It doesn't mean there might not have

          8  been any benefits farther down the road, but --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay. I was

         10  trying to understand whether or not there was a tax

         11  benefit that was associated with that and whether we

         12  should just readdress that issue. That's fine.

         13                 Someone also, I guess Ms. Trina,

         14  suggested that they were shifting the job base to

         15  lower-paying jobs in other places; is that something

         16  that we know, or is that also something that we

         17  think is correct?

         18                 MS. MILLER-BALDWIN: Up in

         19  Massachusetts that salary is less than ours.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Do we know

         21  that for a fact that their salary scale is a lot

         22  lower than the salary that was negotiated by your

         23  union, do you know that, the person from the union?

         24                 MS. MILLER-BALDWIN: Yes, we do.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And that is
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          2  a fact. Okay, I just wanted to clarify those things.

          3                 I got the feeling, and I wrote it

          4  down so I don't know who said it, but whoever gets

          5  transferred, and correct me if I am wrong, you will

          6  get, there is a possibility that you can get less

          7  pay, or there is a possibility that you can get

          8  down, I guess downgraded?

          9                 I know in position I clearly

         10  understood that you can get downgraded, but the

         11  suggestion was that you could somehow wind up making

         12  less money and stay with the same company. If that

         13  is true? And if it is true, give me some examples in

         14  which that has happened.

         15                 MS. MURCOTT: Under the terms of the

         16  contract that is in effect you cannot upgrade. When

         17  you declare a surplus, you cannot upgrade, you can

         18  only be placed in a lateral job or downgraded.

         19                 Now, your pay is protected under the

         20  contract but that is only until August of 2000. Most

         21  of my employees have better than 25, 30 years

         22  service, most of these women that we are talking

         23  about have better than 25, 30 years of service. For

         24  the most part they are being offered jobs at lower

         25  rates of pay. Sure, there pay will be protected in
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          2  August of 2000, but after that there is no guarantee

          3  that it will be, and the jobs that they are being

          4  offered are significantly lower.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Has Bell

          6  Atlantic done similar things in the past in which

          7  they have moved people around from one Department

          8  from another in an effort to I guess downsize or to

          9  take care of mergers? And has history shown that

         10  that is what has happened, that after they go

         11  through a cycle that they wind up making less money

         12  or do we not have a record or a history of that?

         13                 I am an account, by the way, so I can

         14  relate to talking about losing accounting jobs. What

         15  I am trying to establish is whether that has been

         16  done in the past. I know you are saying that you

         17  suspect that that may happen, my question is, as a

         18  result of the recent mergers and acquisitions of all

         19  companies, this is happening a lot today?

         20                 MS. MURCOTT: It actually is happening

         21  right now.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay,

         23  that's the question.

         24                 MS. MURCOTT: Because the jobs that

         25  our people are being offered, they are being offered

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  jobs at lower rates of pay. Now, their pay is

          3  protected until August of 2000, but after that, if

          4  there is no pay protection in there, then they will

          5  in fact be downgraded to the rate of pay of the job

          6  that they are doing.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Is this it

          8  the first time this has happened at Bell Atlantic is

          9  what you are saying? That there hasn't been lateral

         10  movement as in which people have gone to lower

         11  levels of pay and then their protection ends and

         12  they wind up renegotiating? That is what I am

         13  asking, has it happened before?

         14                 Because I mean if they are going to

         15  be protected in the long run and if it has happened

         16  in the past, I just want to know that, that is what

         17  I am asking.

         18                 MS. MURCOTT: Yes. Under the terms of

         19  one of our old contracts we had income pay

         20  protection, which gave them a certain period of time

         21  in which their pay was protected, and then it

         22  gradually went to the lower rate of pay of the job

         23  that you were doing. So, in the end you can work 25,

         24  35 years, build up your pay, and within a three to

         25  five-year period lose it again.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, now I

          3  just have two more short questions.

          4                 Because the people from Bell Atlantic

          5  are not here to address some of the issues in this

          6  letter, I will just ask you for your comments. I am

          7  sure there will be your comments.

          8                 They are suggesting that, they are

          9  saying 123, you are saying closer to 200. I am not

         10  going to dispute the number. The number is not as

         11  important as the message.

         12                 MS. MURCOTT: We are right, sir.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right, I

         14  agree with that. Let's go with your number, because

         15  they are not here to dispute that, you are right.

         16                 But they are also saying that that

         17  only represents a very tiny portion of the 14,000

         18  jobs that are in New York City and they are saying

         19  that in order for them to be an efficient

         20  organization they have to have that flexibility. Can

         21  you just give me your feelings about that statement

         22  that they made?

         23                 MS. MURCOTT: To them it might be a

         24  few jobs, to my people it has been a lifetime

         25  career. I realize this is an insignificant move, as
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          2  far as they bare concerned --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

          4                 MS. MURCOTT: But it is a major move

          5  to us. It is their entire payroll, their entire

          6  revenue department that is being moved.

          7                 As I said, these women sit before you

          8  --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: No, I

         10  understand. I am just trying to get a feel.

         11                 The last question, and I am just

         12  going to read what they wrote, "Bell Atlantic has

         13  gone to great lengths to care for those employees

         14  who have chosen to remain with the company rather

         15  than retire." I guess that is not accurate, right?

         16  Can you tell us instances in which that is not as

         17  accurate as they write in this letter?

         18                 MS. JIRVES: Bell Atlantic said that

         19  they were to give us training so we can get the jobs

         20  in higher grades. We are all women that have worked

         21  for the company for over 25 years, all of us are 45

         22  years old and better, give us one day of training to

         23  pass a test that would give an 18-year-old brain

         24  damage. I don't even understand what Bell Atlantic

         25  is talking about. Treating us fairly, that is
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          2  absolutely absurd.

          3                 They are transferring us to jobs that

          4  pay less money. Our pay is protected until the Year

          5  of 2000, they wanted to force out as many of us as

          6  they can on a retirement basis.  When we refused to

          7  retire, some of us, like myself, they are out there

          8  to, oh, just, Lorna, guess what? You are going to

          9  get a job and maybe you will make what you are

         10  making now, but eventually it will be over. So, you

         11  should have taken the package.

         12                 Bell Atlantic is not helping or

         13  trying to commend us for the service that we

         14  dedicated our lives and built their company. Bell

         15  Atlantic is out to screw us, excuse my expression,

         16  as hard as they can and as many ways as they can

         17  because we opted not to leave their payroll.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Why did I

         19  suspect that was going to be the answer?

         20                 Thank you. No more questions.

         21                 MS. MACHERIE BOOKER: I would like to

         22  add to that.

         23                 I have acted as a facilitator or

         24  training for the job training program, and some of

         25  these women that have come to us to be trained have
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          2  opted for jobs as field techs. And these jobs entail

          3  that you pass a very difficult test which these

          4  people are not qualified to do.

          5                 One of the things that they need for

          6  qualification is called pole climbing. Some of these

          7  women are, as Lorna Jirves mentioned, are 45 to 50

          8  some years old. The job salary of this particular

          9  job was at the time that I was trained, was $1,041

         10  per week. So, of course these would be jobs that you

         11  would say, hey, I would like to try it.

         12                 Pole climbing, you have to pass pole

         13  climbing. And these women were desperate, very

         14  desperate that they would come at age 45 to 50 some

         15  years old to try and pass a very hard test to get

         16  these jobs which was not possible.

         17                 And so, for me, I looked at it and I

         18  said this is a ridiculous, futile offer to make

         19  people who have only trained in a clerical position

         20  for so many years to opt to try to take these tests.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you.

         22                 Councilman Golden.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Chairman.

         25                 I hear you. My mother is a retired
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          2  Bell Atlantic employee. She worked split shifts back

          3  in the sixties and seventies, raised eight kids, so

          4  I know what the difficulty was and, you know, it was

          5  very tough working for Bell Atlantic years ago. It

          6  has really changed a lot recently, but unfortunately

          7  not for some here. But I represent a Bayridge,

          8  Bensonhurst, Dycker Heights, parts of Boro Park, I

          9  have several buildings and many employees in those

         10  buildings, and of course Bell Atlantic let its lease

         11  expire and moved, and all I could do was sweat it

         12  out and try and get somebody else to get that

         13  building. Their loss was my gain because I needed a

         14  school, and I got myself a school in my community.

         15  But the unfortunate reality is that the hundreds of

         16  jobs that we are discussing here, and I believe

         17  there are efforts made to try to reemploy that

         18  entire 200 people, leaves the reality that, you

         19  know, we have companies that are actually taking

         20  thousands of jobs out of this City, and there is

         21  nothing at all that this City Council can do about

         22  it. And anybody who is telling you that the City

         23  Council can do something about it is fooling you.

         24                 This is making you feel good, but

         25  when you walk out that door, the City Council has no
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          2  jurisdiction over a corporation. And you know what,

          3  in this great City and this great country you

          4  wouldn't want a City Council having jurisdiction

          5  over the corporations that live and work and reside

          6  in those cities.

          7                 And there are many reasons for that.

          8  One being today it is Bell Atlantic, tomorrow it is

          9  Macy's, the day after that it is Sears, the day

         10  after that it is Loges Ice Cream Parlour, because

         11  that is a corporation and saying how many employees

         12  should stay, and how many employees shouldn't stay.

         13                 I feel for everybody in this room,

         14  and I understand what you are going through.

         15                 My brother was laid off from the

         16  telephone company and he never was rehired by them,

         17  and I understand those concerns. But there is

         18  nothing that this City Council can do for you. This

         19  is only a feel good thing for you today, and it is

         20  absolutely a shame that you are sitting here before

         21  us testifying, and knowing that nobody here, and

         22  this City Council cannot do anything for you. You do

         23  not belong here. And I feel for each and every one

         24  of you and each and every one of your families, but

         25  that is in fact a reality. And, again, you have my
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          2  heart, and that is all you can get is my heart

          3  because that is all that this City Council can do.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All right,

          6  now, Councilman, I understand what you are trying to

          7  say, and you said it, but this City Council

          8  certainly has the obligation to hold hearings on

          9  literally anything, whether there is an authority

         10  vested in this Council or not, to have oversight,

         11  and if anything, this particular Committee is one of

         12  the greatest oversight committees because of the

         13  lack of jurisdiction that economic has, since we are

         14  a free market enterprise. So we are here to

         15  highlight their plight, because it is a democracy,

         16  and that is what this Council does. So, I am proud

         17  to be here to highlight it. And if need be, and I

         18  think we will send a strong letter on behalf of the

         19  Council members to this organization with regard to

         20  their plight and our concerns, because they are

         21  citizens and they pay taxes and they are here.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If I could also

         23  add --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Can I finish?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I would just
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          2  like to respond, as the person who requested the

          3  hearing, when you are done.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Go ahead.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Where I am

          8  going here is I understand and I feel for everybody

          9  in this room and I hear what you are saying, and I

         10  am saying we can't do anything for them, but that is

         11  the reality of it, that we can't. We cannot do

         12  anything for them. We can send a letter to the

         13  telephone company and we can send a letter to every

         14  corporation in the City of New York, but the reality

         15  of it is they will not respond to the letter and

         16  they will go on and do what they wish to do, and

         17  that is the bottom line.

         18                 So, these people thinking that this

         19  City Council is going to do something for them is

         20  very much mistaken.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Well, we are

         22  doing something for them right now, they are here.

         23                 Councilman DiBrienza.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: See, it

         25  takes all points of view to make up the City
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          2  Council. Now, my good friend and conservative

          3  Republican colleague has a point of view, and some

          4  of us have a different point of view.

          5                 Number one, we are acting as

          6  legislators, as a City Council, to air an important

          7  issue. We have helped put pressure on a corporation

          8  to be responsible. We have a corporation that has

          9  refused to come here and we highlight that, that is

         10  important. We have a corporation that appears to

         11  have violated the PSC directive, that is important,

         12  that is governmental. While we don't have

         13  jurisdiction in a technical sense over the PSC, it

         14  is important.

         15                 We have a corporation like many that

         16  take corporate welfare from this republican

         17  conservative administration in numbers higher than

         18  ever before, billions of dollars, and we don't hold

         19  them accountable enough, despite our effort to

         20  maintain jobs, to expand jobs to New York City

         21  residents.

         22                 So, everything we do here today

         23  contributes to the core.

         24                 Now, if anyone were in this room

         25  thinking, and I know you are not, I wouldn't insult
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          2  you as union leaders and workers, that we could

          3  simply order them to reopen Manhattan or Brooklyn

          4  and restore the job, then maybe it would be

          5  important to tell you we don't have that power, but

          6  you know we don't have that power. The question is

          7  the cumulative effect of the struggle you are in and

          8  the support we give it. And to hold these

          9  corporations accountable for the millions upon

         10  millions of tax dollars that they take and then run,

         11  whether it is Bell Atlantic or Chase.

         12                 Now, the problem is this

         13  Administration would rather support corporations

         14  than the working people of this City. They would

         15  rather break unions than support unions. That is why

         16  they believe there is nothing that we can do. You

         17  all know that, you are intelligent people. So,

         18  resolutions and oversight and aggressive

         19  participation in a struggle is what we can do.

         20                 I refuse to suggest, it is absurd to

         21  suggest that is nothing, unless you set up the

         22  narrow, the most narrow simplistic argument, can we

         23  by the stroke of a pen let's say, to use my words,

         24  save the jobs? The answer is no. But we all know

         25  that. It is the cumulative statement of a
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          2  legislative body that we attempt, or at least in

          3  this case the Committee under the able direction of

          4  our chair, that allows these things to happen.

          5                 And once you peel beyond that layer,

          6  let's look at the PSC and its violation, let's look

          7  at the kinds of tax breaks that this and other

          8  corporations get and then don't maintain the job,

          9  those are public policy issues.

         10                 You know, this Administration is good

         11  after going after any and every person on welfare.

         12  Believing them all to be fraudulent, lazy, crooked,

         13  you know, but they have rooted out ways for the

         14  corruption in the early going and now they are into

         15  another level of just hassling people. That they are

         16  good at. But billions of dollars in corporate

         17  welfare, they celebrate with ribbon cuttings and

         18  press releases, and meanwhile 250 jobs, in this

         19  case, and hundreds and thousands, you know, when you

         20  add it all up.

         21                 So, not only are we doing something,

         22  not only do we have an obligation to do something,

         23  but the reason we can view it as positive or

         24  negative has much to do with what we support. And I

         25  support the Chair, my colleague who introduced the
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          2  hearing and several others who believe that what we

          3  should be doing is supporting the working men and

          4  women of this City, and I hope that the people in

          5  this room understand that, I know you do, and it is

          6  really important I think that that record should be

          7  clear.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you.

         10                 Council Member Carrion.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chairman.

         13                 I must also -- well, first of all,

         14  thank you for being here, for your testimony, and I

         15  must also agree and attach myself to the comments of

         16  the Council Member Steve DiBrienza, as well as the

         17  Chairman of this Committee, as well as Council

         18  Member Quinn, and disagree respectfully with my

         19  colleague, Council Member Golden.

         20                 I think that we have a duty and a

         21  responsibility to bring up any important issue that

         22  affects people, and technically we may not be able

         23  to, to use the words of Council Member DiBrienza, by

         24  the stroke of a pen declare by fiat that somebody

         25  must do something, but we, as a legislature and as
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          2  representatives of the people of this City must air

          3  issues and be as creative as possible to look at an

          4  issue from every possible angle.

          5                 I am sure that if we sit here long

          6  enough talking about this, we will come up with a

          7  number of possibilities by which we can put pressure

          8  on almost any entity.

          9                 We were just involved very recently,

         10  as a matter of fact yesterday we voted on an issue

         11  that affects 9,300 Americans in a far away place in

         12  Vieques, Puerto Rico, where there is a naval base

         13  and people are being bombed 24 hours a day for the

         14  last 58 years, and this City Council made a

         15  statement about that. Some people felt that we had

         16  no jurisdiction, and we have not direct

         17  jurisdiction, but we are a legislative body in this

         18  democracy and we could send a statement to the

         19  President of the United States, who is the Commander

         20  in Chief of the Navy, and ask him to direct the Navy

         21  to pull the Navy out of that Island.

         22                 We made an unequivocal statement,

         23  this legislative body was one of the first to make a

         24  statement in the anti-apartheid campaign in South

         25  Africa. God knows we have no jurisdiction over South
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          2  Africa, but the statement had an impact on the

          3  behavior of corporate America and pension funds that

          4  were doing business with companies that were doing

          5  business in South Africa and the dollars began to

          6  flow outward instead of inward and they started to

          7  bleed away from that economy and all of a sudden we

          8  changed the behavior of corporations that we had no

          9  direct jurisdiction over.

         10                 So, we do have a moral obligation and

         11  a political obligation as elected officials. And

         12  then we have some direct responsibility. And I know

         13  this should not, Mr. Chairman, with all due respect,

         14  and Council Member Quinn, this should not turn into

         15  a debate about our scope of responsibility, but

         16  since it came up, we do have jurisdiction over the

         17  Economic Development Corporation of the City of New

         18  York, they are responsible to reporting to us, as to

         19  their activities and their attempts to keep jobs and

         20  their job retention policies and the activities of

         21  the EDC vis-a-vis Bell Atlantic, and have we made

         22  any attempt to keep these jobs in New York? The jury

         23  is out. We will have to find that out. It needs to

         24  be aired.

         25                 We do have a responsibility to ask
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          2  these questions, and i am very glad that we are here

          3  doing this, and I just have one question based on

          4  the letter that we received from Mr. William S.

          5  Floyd, Staff Director, at the Regulatory and

          6  Government Affairs Office of Bell Atlantic.

          7                 In his letter he describes a generous

          8  early retirement package and it is important that

          9  you, I would like you to address this, negotiated by

         10  the union, half of our union representative

         11  employees who work in the Brooklyn office and nearly

         12  all of those who work in the Manhattan location have

         13  chosen voluntarily to retire. The plan allows

         14  employees to choose from among several retirement

         15  dates through December 1999, which is I guess about

         16  two and a half months left to choose dates for

         17  retirement.

         18                 Could you describe what that generous

         19  early retirement package is and how you negotiated

         20  this?

         21                 MS. MURCOTT: Yes, sir. Starting in

         22  1994, the company had told us that they had 16,000

         23  surplus employees. We negotiated a contract in 1994

         24  that addressed the surplus and had a downsize of the

         25  corporation. That was the offer that they are
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          2  referring to.

          3                 In 1998, the company realized that

          4  not only did they not have 16,000 surplus employees,

          5  but they have done some hiring. So, they realized

          6  that they could not let those people go because of

          7  the telephone lines, you know, the lines for the

          8  computers and things like that.

          9                 When we sat at the bargaining table

         10  in 1998, we sat there, a lot of our people wanted to

         11  go. What we negotiated at the bargaining table was

         12  what I refer to as "Stay Pay." You put a package on

         13  the table encouraging people to go, what we now did

         14  was put a package on the table encouraging them to

         15  stay.

         16                 My employees got raises of between

         17  $60 and $100 a week. The pensions were increased by

         18  25 percent. Everything that was done in the 1998

         19  contract took the package that was put on the table

         20  from 1994 and rolled it. It was no longer attractive

         21  for our people to leave. It was more attractive for

         22  them to stay. They got better pensions, better

         23  wages, and better benefits, and 80 percent match on

         24  the savings plan if you stayed.

         25                 So, when they refer to this package
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          2  that our people wanted, in '94 that was true. In '98

          3  it was no longer true, because what we had

          4  negotiated at the table turned that whole scenario

          5  around.

          6                 And if I could just add to the

          7  members of the Council, whatever it is you can do or

          8  cannot do, and I am not sure of your limits, I just

          9  want you to know that your support and your

         10  encouragement are very important to the members of

         11  my organization and we appreciate it, and we

         12  appreciate anything you can do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you.

         14  That is why we are here.

         15                 Councilwoman Eldridge.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         17                 First, I want to rise to Council

         18  Member Golden's defense. I think he shares all of

         19  our concerns about the plight of the members of your

         20  local and these circumstances. I think being a

         21  republican he doesn't have the same aggressive

         22  advocacy strategies that democrats have resorted to.

         23  So, I think that is the only difference. And I want

         24  you to understand that.

         25                 And I also think that we are part,
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          2  that we don't have to help you develop a strategy,

          3  obviously you have developed a very good strategy

          4  because we are part of it and we are here today and

          5  we are going to play our role in this.

          6                 I just am slightly concerned or

          7  didn't totally understand one thing, and I want to

          8  make it very clear, Ms. Jirves, that when you talked

          9  about the company and the City offering incentives

         10  and abatements and different assistance and low cost

         11  energy or elimination of sales tax, all of the

         12  different things that we offer, I did not consider

         13  that a desirable thing. And I am hoping that you

         14  weren't suggesting that we should do that

         15  necessarily. I just didn't know if you were

         16  suggesting that the City should engage in that kind

         17  of discussion to save these jobs?

         18                 MS. JIRVES: No.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Okay.

         20                 MS. JIRVES: Definitely not.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I think that

         22  we have been much too lax in giving money to

         23  corporations and organizations that themselves

         24  earned losts of money for their stockholders, and

         25  pay exorbitantly high salaries to their chief
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          2  executives, and that what we need to do and what our

          3  role is, because I also believe that the oversight

          4  that this Council is able to expend on the economic

          5  development agency, is totally ineffective and

          6  sufficient. And that is not to slight our chair or

          7  this committee or our efforts, it is really always

          8  to cite the efforts of the people who work in those

          9  agencies, and they are public servants who by and

         10  large fancy themselves as being corporate executives

         11  and they see themselves more on the business side

         12  than on the public side as far as what they are

         13  doing, and they are getting a thrill out of working

         14  with corporations that make lots of money and they

         15  listen to these corporations. I think they think

         16  that if you make -- if we think you have a lot of

         17  money, then you must be smart, you know? Or if you

         18  are in the private sector you are smart. And what we

         19  all need to do together, is on a much more basic and

         20  philosophic level, is what is the morality of

         21  business in a community and what is the absolute

         22  role of the government? I mean we are supposed to I

         23  think protect our residents and citizens, not to

         24  necessarily protect the bottom line economics of a

         25  corporation, although they are totally intimately
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          2  related, and we need to do that. The Economic

          3  Development Corporation, and it is not only just

          4  under this Mayor, except I think it has been grossly

          5  increased under this Mayor, does not share its

          6  important statistics with us, we frequently are not

          7  able to know what the packages are that they give

          8  the corporations to stay, and it is a very difficult

          9  process and it is something that needs to be brought

         10  into much more public scrutiny.

         11                 And reading today, Mr. Chair, and I

         12  was going to ask you, the New York Times is now

         13  contemplating building a building at Times Square

         14  and looking for massive tax incentives, and I would

         15  suggest that a lot of the coverage in the newspapers

         16  and television in this city has been affected by the

         17  indebtedness of the corporations to the City of New

         18  York and to the Administration, and that we can't

         19  have television networks receiving economic

         20  assistance from the city, not feeling under the same

         21  pressure, especially in this kind of an

         22  Administration from this Mayor that the Brooklyn

         23  Museum is seeing being exerted on them.  And we have

         24  to look at that very carefully.

         25                 I remember being at a hearing at
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          2  AT&T, and I am not at all an expert on the utilities

          3  and CWA and what happened, but I know that the City

          4  did give AT&T a large tax package or abatement

          5  package when they built the building that they built

          6  on Madison Avenue and then sold it to Sony and also

          7  I think moved some jobs out. So, I don't know the

          8  family tree and the connection, I just wondered if

          9  someone could explain to us the connection with Bell

         10  Atlantic, NYNEX; is there a relationship to AT&T?

         11  No, okay. Thank you.

         12                 But it is an example that we have had

         13  where agreements have been abridged, where jobs have

         14  been lost, where deals were broken when the City did

         15  in fact help them.

         16                 So, I am all for helping you and I

         17  think that we have to keep on in the discussions and

         18  putting on the agenda the balance between the people

         19  who live here and the needs of the businesses that

         20  employ them, and we have got to be very careful

         21  about that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

         23  Councilwoman.

         24                 MS. MURCOTT: Can I just state that

         25  the relationship between AT&T and Bell Atlantic, in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  the fact that they are both major corporations, and

          3  both of them, when they have the opportunity, move

          4  out of the areas to do business, such as New York,

          5  and in some cases, particularly with AT&T overseas,

          6  and I just think that this is where Bell Atlantic is

          7  going also. Everything out of New York, wherever it

          8  is cheap as possible, and who knows what is next.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All right. I

         10  want to thank you very much for coming up.

         11                 Oh, Councilwoman Freed.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Chair.

         14                 I will try and be brief. Clearly I

         15  also disagree with our colleague Mr. Golden as to

         16  what we can or can't do. I mean, first, any time

         17  that there is -- I think we would be remiss if we

         18  didn't have this hearing. Any time that there is an

         19  economic impact in the City of New York, I think it

         20  is of concern to the City Council. And in this case,

         21  while we are dealing with first the question of the

         22  potential violation of the merger agreement with the

         23  Public Service Organization Commission, where I

         24  think that clearly is something that we can step in

         25  and say something to, but I don't think it is
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          2  entirely accurate to talk about Bell Atlantic as a

          3  totally private concern when they clearly are, in a

          4  way, a public monopoly and are at least a Quasi

          5  Public Agency, which is why they have the PSC doing

          6  some oversight over them.

          7                 But I think there is another area

          8  that we should be looking into and it is not just

          9  moral suasion, but it is very clear that in addition

         10  to tax dollars that go to Bell Atlantic, there are

         11  numerous times that Bell Atlantic must come to the

         12  City of New York for franchises. I mean, they have

         13  to have the right to in many cases lay lines and

         14  they need the okay from this City Council to agree

         15  with a number of those franchise agreements, and it

         16  seems to me, while on one hand obviously we don't

         17  want to stop service to anyone in this City, at the

         18  same time I think that we should potentially look at

         19  them and say, listen, as long as you are going to be

         20  asking for us to do certain things in the City

         21  Council, then we are going to turn that around and

         22  also ask to you that in certain cases, and in

         23  particularly cases like this where we think you

         24  bargained in bad faith to begin with, and where you

         25  are going to be affecting the economic development
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          2  of this City, that we should look at that before we

          3  agree to those franchise agreements.

          4                 So, I think there are some very real

          5  ways that we can have an impact on Bell Atlantic,

          6  and I assure you that we are going to look into that

          7  and that we support you in all ways possible.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 MS. MURCOTT: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay, my

         11  Council colleagues have cleared up the fact that

         12  this Council, no matter what committee it is, has

         13  oversight on anything that happens in this town,

         14  period.

         15                 Now, remember, this City Council,

         16  working in conjunction with the Executive Mayor,

         17  passes a $35 billion, $36 billion budget, that

         18  includes many, many tax breaks and land deals, and

         19  not deals, I hate that word deal, but land

         20  operations for corporate America that is here in

         21  this City. And whether or not Bell Atlantic or AT&T,

         22  Councilwoman Freed alluded to it, in the future

         23  might need a franchise agreement with this City or

         24  any other utility which is a Quasi-public operation,

         25  therefore might just come under the subpoena powers
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          2  of this City Council, whatever Committee has

          3  oversight, to subpoena some of their records, based

          4  on whatever issue it might be, we will do it.

          5                 Remember now, this Council in this

          6  City is the most powerful city in the world, we

          7  address every issue from the right to South Africans

          8  to Northern Ireland, the Soviet Union to Vieques

          9  bombing range, you name it, we do it, because that

         10  is the make-up of this city, and if we have to have

         11  oversight hearings on this particular issue, Bell

         12  Atlantic, for the union or for anybody else, because

         13  you are taxpayers in this City, we will do it. And

         14  if we have to send a resolution or a letter, a very

         15  strong letter or our position and our intentions of

         16  any future dealings with Bell Atlantic, we will do

         17  that to Bell Atlantic too. And believe me, when we

         18  do it, they are going to stop, they are going to

         19  listen, and their ears are going to perk up, like

         20  every other corporation does when this City Council

         21  goes on record.

         22                 So, that is where we are coming from.

         23  I respectfully disagree with Councilman Golden. He

         24  has a right to say what he said, I know where he is

         25  coming from, but in this particular instance I
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          2  believe he is wrong.

          3                 Thank you for coming and we will move

          4  this hearing along. We have two more panels.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 MS. MURCOTT: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: We will bring,

          8  please, Reverend Earl Kooperkamp, Workers Rights

          9  Board; Robert Cherry, Five Borough Institute. And

         10  Henry Therwood, ACORN. We will hear their testimony

         11  and then we will have two other people before this

         12  hearing.

         13                 Gentlemen. Okay, gentlemen, would you

         14  put your names for the record and start.

         15                 Reverend, you first.

         16                 REVEREND KOOPERKAMP: Yes, I am Earl

         17  Kooperkamp, of the Church of the Intercession,

         18  Assistant Minister and I am representing the Workers

         19  Rights Board.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Sir.

         21                 MR. THERWOOD: Good evening, ladies

         22  and gentlemen of the City Council. My name is Henry

         23  W. Therwood, I am the representative organizer of

         24  ACORN, Association Community Organization Reform

         25  Now. Thank you.
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          2                 MR. CHERRY: My name is Robert Cherry.

          3  I am an economist at Brooklyn College and also a

          4  member of the Five Boroughs Institute, public policy

          5  advocate.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Reverend.

          7                 REVEREND KOOPERKAMP: Thank you.

          8                 Sisters and brothers and members of

          9  the City Council, I thank you very much for your

         10  time and your concern with this issue.

         11                 Last spring I was a member of the

         12  Workers Rights Board that heard the case of these

         13  203 jobs that Bell Atlantic was planning to move out

         14  of New York City.

         15                 As should be quite evident, we

         16  quickly learned from the hearing that these jobs are

         17  not just leaving the City, but truly the lives of

         18  the people in our City were threatened, and what

         19  struck me most, both as a pastor and as a resident

         20  of this City, that this was more than simply just an

         21  economic development issue, that indeed it is a

         22  community issue.

         23                 The testimony of the Bell Atlantic

         24  workers, and we heard some of the testimony just a

         25  little bit earlier, it shows that they have done
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          2  more in their lives than simply hold jobs for Bell

          3  Atlantic, they have built this community.

          4                 These workers have raised families,

          5  educated a new generation and indeed even a second

          6  generation after that. They have worked with their

          7  schools and their PTAs. They have served in the

          8  churches, synagogues and mosques in their

          9  communities, making them strong houses of prayer and

         10  places of faith. They have put in countless hours

         11  working with their block associations or tenants

         12  organizations. They have worked in community gardens

         13  and they have generally done the things necessary to

         14  make New York a livable and a great city that it is.

         15                 I think that it is accurate to say

         16  that the workers of Bell Atlantic whose jobs are now

         17  threatened represent the very fabric of our

         18  community. To move these jobs out of New York

         19  literally was to rip the fabric of our community

         20  apart for our people.

         21                 As I said last spring I think we need

         22  look no further than the Eighth Commandment in

         23  resolving this issue. A little catechismal lesson,

         24  for those of you who can't remember the Eighth

         25  Commandment, it is two simple words - don't steal,
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          2  or if you prefer the older language, "Thou shalt not

          3  steal."

          4                 And as I said last spring, these 203

          5  workers have given a lot for our community. They

          6  have worked hard to make this community better, and

          7  what Bell Atlantic is doing is stealing from this

          8  community. They are stealing from the women and men

          9  who built this company up. Their livelihood is about

         10  to be stolen away from them.

         11                 And today I am very concerned that

         12  this situation, this theft, could sound a death nell

         13  for New York, not only in the lives of these Bell

         14  Atlantic workers, but for all of us and for our

         15  communities.

         16                 In closing, speaking about what I see

         17  is the theft that is being perpetrated by Bell

         18  Atlantic, let me quote the words of the great

         19  Anglican Divine John Don, written over 300 years

         20  ago, about the deep connection that sustains all

         21  human life together. I think these words are

         22  probably particularly appropriate for a company

         23  named Bell. Don wrote, "Therefore, never send to

         24  know for whom the bell tolls, it tolls for thee."

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

          3  Reverend.

          4                 Sir.

          5                 MR. THERWOOD: Thank you, ladies and

          6  gentlemen of the City Council. I am here

          7  representing ACORN because I am one of the community

          8  people that lives in the community, works in the

          9  community and pay my bills in the community.

         10                 Downtown Brooklyn has gone through a

         11  great change in the last few years. It has brand new

         12  office complexes, hotels and shopping centers. These

         13  have brought but new corporation jobs to the area

         14  and they bring real estate owners to a lot of money.

         15  But at the same time we, the small people, are

         16  forgotten.

         17                 Remember when they moved the offices

         18  from out of the telephone company that we have to,

         19  if something to wrong with the telephone, and we go

         20  down there to complain, there is no place to

         21  complain to. No one to listen. But at the same time

         22  the business that were always located in Brooklyn,

         23  downtown, serving Brooklyn residents are not doing

         24  as well.

         25                 This story is familiar now because it
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          2  has been happening to the old city. The companies

          3  are doing well, the corporations are doing well, the

          4  utilities are doing wonderful and business district

          5  looks better, but the residents of the City, people

          6  who commute within the City, the people who live

          7  outside Manhattan, and live there have decayed.

          8                 We are suffering in the margin. But

          9  Bell Atlantic has to know that we are the ones that

         10  pay the bills, we are the ones that give bonuses to

         11  the higher echelon of the company, and at no cost to

         12  take away those jobs from the community. Our

         13  community supports Bell Atlantic and it is our money

         14  that make them rich. Some of us, it used to come

         15  back to the community, they are local employees, now

         16  our telephone bill would be like the rest of the

         17  money spent, it will go to benefit people outside of

         18  Brooklyn.

         19                 Please, I beg you, return to Brooklyn

         20  these jobs, and these services that we really need.

         21                 People don't just take these jobs

         22  from our families, our neighborhoods. A public

         23  service company can't show any commitment to

         24  Brooklyn residents, then which the new corporate

         25  resident will? Not Con Ed, not Chase, not even Bell
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          2  Atlantic wants to show us anything. These are real

          3  jobs that Bell Atlantic wants to take to New Jersey

          4  and Massachusetts. There they are helping minority

          5  women, their families and their neighbors. There

          6  aren't jobs like this available in other

          7  communities, we cannot afford to lose them. Thank

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

         10  sir.

         11                 MR. CHERRY: I was asked by the

         12  Communication Workers to do an impact study of these

         13  203 job losses, and I want to sort of return to what

         14  Councilperson Quinn started with, and that is, the

         15  bottom line, independent to what happens to the

         16  specific people who were injured by this, these are

         17  a loss to the City of 203 jobs. And in fact, as we

         18  know, when people have jobs they have money to buy

         19  things, they then create jobs for others, that

         20  conservatively by any reasonable estimate probably

         21  the total loss of jobs is closer to 500, when you

         22  take into account this indirect sort of multiplier

         23  effect, there will be a loss of earnings of $22

         24  million a year, and tax revenues of over 41 million,

         25  so that there are ramifications well beyond the
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          2  particular people who have been harmed here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Perhaps you

          4  can hit the high points of this particular study; is

          5  that okay?

          6                 MR. CHERRY: Yes, that is what I have,

          7  the executive summary. You have it, so I don't have

          8  to go into it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay.

         10                 MR. CHERRY: The main point that I try

         11  to focus on in this report, which I actually found

         12  somewhat shocking, is the lack of job growth in New

         13  York City, lack of job growth compared to other

         14  metropolitan areas, that I think one of the more

         15  important things that this Committee could publicize

         16  is how poorly this Administration has done in having

         17  any kind of vision successfully to create jobs.

         18                 So that, for example, in terms of

         19  employment rates, the percentage of people that are

         20  employed, among men in New York City it is 62

         21  percent. In other northern metropolitan areas,

         22  Philadelphia, Detroit, and so on, it is 70 percent.

         23  Among women in New York City it is 42 percent. In

         24  other northern metropolitan areas it is 52 percent.

         25  So that we are talking about a loss of jobs in the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            69

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  context, not of a robust, growing economy, but in

          3  one in which jobs are difficult, and in particular

          4  they are difficult for black women without college

          5  degrees.

          6                 One of the more unfortunate images

          7  that it generated is if you are not a college

          8  graduate you are a loser in this society. So that

          9  maybe we will help people and we will encourage

         10  people to get college degrees, but if you don't get

         11  college degrees, tough luck, you are a loser, take

         12  what jobs are around. And unfortunately, in New York

         13  City those jobs are not around, so the images we may

         14  be creating in Wall Street jobs, and other higher

         15  echelon, but working class jobs, those are losers,

         16  we won't talk about them.

         17                 This City has been horrendous in

         18  that. So that unemployment rates for black women in

         19  this City have grown over this expansion. It is the

         20  only large metropolitan area in the north where that

         21  has occurred, everywhere else it has shrunk, and in

         22  particular the cutbacks in welfare, and this will be

         23  the last point that I want to make, this City has

         24  been extremely harsh in its treatment of women who

         25  have been on welfare, Councilperson DiBrienza
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          2  alluded to that before.

          3                 Now, the fact is that cuts in New

          4  York City have not been any larger than other

          5  cities. But what has been different is over this

          6  expansion from '94 to '97 where they had the data,

          7  in other northern metropolitan areas, the employment

          8  rate of black women grew by ten percent, that is the

          9  percentage of black women who had jobs grew

         10  substantially. In New York City if fell by one

         11  percent.

         12                 So, we are really not simply being

         13  harsh, it isn't tough love where we are saying,

         14  well, you know, these women, you know, they have

         15  been welfare dependent, bla-bla-bla, but we really

         16  care about them -- where is Mr. Golden? He has left

         17  -- you know, we really care. We really care about

         18  these people, but we have to break the cycle and it

         19  is for their own good, but I have a heart and I care

         20  about them.

         21                 Maybe in these other cities you can

         22  get away with that rhetoric, because there was job

         23  growth in these other cities and many more women on

         24  welfare were able to get in the job market, but in

         25  New York City that hasn't happened.
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          2                 So here we are cutting non-college

          3  jobs for black women, throwing them into a job

          4  market which is horrendous and compounding it with

          5  welfare cutbacks. So, again, the main message that I

          6  would have for this Committee, is there should be

          7  more publicity about how this New York City economy

          8  is horrible, relative to other urban areas and it is

          9  because we have a Mayor who has the do nothing

         10  attitude.

         11                 I went to the Manhattan Institute. I

         12  am a member of the Five Boroughs Institute which

         13  wants to be an alternative to the Manhattan

         14  Institute.

         15                 The Manhattan Institute had a

         16  conference a year and a half ago on the New York

         17  economy. Their position was, just cut taxes for

         18  businesses and they will come. That somehow it will

         19  be like a field of dreams, you build a stadium and

         20  they will come. No vision for what kind of, where

         21  you can generate jobs in the City, and we see the

         22  result.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: I thank you.

         25                 Councilwoman.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          3                 I find your remarks very interesting

          4  and I would like to remind the Chair, although I

          5  guess it is not his fault, that several years ago we

          6  introduced a bill, Council Member DiBrienza and I,

          7  after a lot of work in this City, and a lot of

          8  contributions from some of the unions in the City,

          9  to propose an alternative ICIP, with the Industrial

         10  and Commercial Incentive Program, to bring some true

         11  meaning to what we call economic development, which

         12  is not economic development, as far as some of us

         13  are concerned, which gave tax advantages or

         14  incentives to businesses that actually developed

         15  jobs, and it was calibrated to payroll tax or to a

         16  way that you could tell it was a new job, you got

         17  the benefit; not a new job, you don't get the

         18  benefit. And I think that that is important, and

         19  this is something that we have never defined.

         20                 I have been in the Council for ten

         21  years and I keep hearing these reports of economic

         22  development. We are not developing any new

         23  industries or businesses, and the worst part which I

         24  would like to emphasize is that in our welfare

         25  reform, what we are doing is attempting to end
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          2  dependency, but not the poverty, and why this

          3  becomes even doubly important in your discussion

          4  about for high school graduates but not college

          5  graduates, is that we have no, we are not developing

          6  the jobs that have a ladder to some success and to,

          7  you know, to the security of being able to be

          8  promoted and have a future. And this is critical to

          9  us, and I would think this is maybe a very good

         10  opportunity for this Committee and the Council to

         11  finally move away from what it likes to consider

         12  economic development, which is really the corporate

         13  retention and move to some things that are more

         14  meaningful.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Councilman.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Actually I

         18  just wanted to say that one of the things, and it is

         19  slightly off the point, but in addition to better

         20  uses of tax incentives to actually create entry

         21  level jobs, we have a transitional jobs bill that my

         22  Committee is looking at which is another program

         23  for, which many cities and states across this

         24  country are looking at as a second wave of welfare

         25  reform that is creating jobs, entry level jobs,
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          2  transitional in nature, which of course initial

          3  implications are the Administration will oppose. So

          4  it is pretty widespread that they are more, you

          5  know, appear to be more interested not only the

          6  hi-tech, high profile, you know, headline grabbing

          7  kind of deals and they don't look enough at real job

          8  recreation strategies, at particularly an entry

          9  level area. And that is why trying to save 400 or

         10  300 or 500, whatever it is, you know, initial jobs

         11  in the multiplier effect, real union jobs with

         12  benefits and strong wage settings and careers that

         13  these women have talked about having, why it is

         14  absolutely the purview, and I hate to end where I

         15  began, but absolutely the purview of this Council to

         16  speak about, you know, regardless of what technical

         17  jurisdiction we have.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you.

         21                 Thank you, gentlemen. Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 We will now have our last panel. That

         24  would be Ms. Gabrielle Semel, Esquire,

         25  Communications Workers of America; and Kenneth R.
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          2  Peres, CWA.

          3                 Counselor.

          4                 MS. SEMEL: Good afternoon. My name is

          5  Gabrielle Semel, and I am District Council for the

          6  Communication Workers of America.

          7                 You have heard the testimony of

          8  workers at Bell Atlantic's two accounting offices

          9  that are scheduled to close, and they have told you

         10  in far more compelling ways than I possible could

         11  the dislocating affect that the closing of these two

         12  offices is having on their lives and their families.

         13  And you have also heard from community leaders about

         14  the negative ripple effect that the loss of over 200

         15  jobs will have on those communities, and I am not

         16  going to repeat that testimony.

         17                 I am here to tell you about Bell

         18  Atlantic's unilateral actions which violated federal

         19  labor law and the status of the proceedings before

         20  the Administrative Law Judge of the National Labor

         21  Relations Board.

         22                 Now, I don't know how many of you are

         23  familiar with the details of federal labor law and I

         24  am not going to give you a tutorial, but I am just

         25  going to give you a little bit of an understanding
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          2  of why we file charges with the Board and why their

          3  actions violate the labor laws of this country.

          4                 Section 8(a)(5) of the National Labor

          5  Relations Act states that an employer commits an

          6  unfair labor practice when it fails to bargain with

          7  the Union over terms and conditions of employment.

          8  And these terms and conditions of employment are

          9  called mandatory subjects of bargaining.

         10                 Relocation of work is a mandatory

         11  subject of bargaining, and although there are some

         12  exceptions, they don't apply here and Bell Atlantic

         13  has never asserted that they do apply.

         14                 The law requires that an employer

         15  gives the union notice of an intended change in an

         16  adequate time to bargain. In this case Bell Atlantic

         17  representatives notified the Executive Board of CWA

         18  Local 1100 at 9:00 a.m. in the morning on August

         19  25th, and as you heard the local leadership explain,

         20  they were shocked and they were upset. Company

         21  managers told them at that meeting that they were

         22  then going from the offices of Local 1100 directly

         23  to the two affected offices and were going to

         24  announce to the employees in those offices that they

         25  were going to shut down those offices.
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          2                 Gail Murcott, who you heard testify,

          3  and the Executive Board, asked the company to hold

          4  off the announcement. They were truly stunned. They

          5  had not in their experience in the many decades that

          6  they dealt with this company, if they could just

          7  wait and not announce it to the workers, because

          8  they knew what a terrible affect it would have on

          9  them, if they could just wait until she and the rest

         10  of the Executive Board could speak with Larry

         11  Mancino, who was the Vice President of CWA district

         12  1 and get some advice on what they should do. The

         13  company completely refused, went from their office

         14  to the offices that were about to be shut down and

         15  announced to the workers that were gathered there

         16  that the offices were going to close. They used

         17  definite language, they said, "These offices are

         18  going to close." And they told them that the reason

         19  they were doing it was because they expected a lot

         20  of people would be taking the six and six pension

         21  enhancements and this was a good time to do that.

         22                 As you have heard, most of the

         23  workers involved were long-time employees. They were

         24  too old to find satisfying new jobs and they are too

         25  young to retire.
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          2                 They were faced with two unattractive

          3  alternatives - an insecure future, or early

          4  retirement.

          5                 Not knowing where they would end up

          6  at Bell Atlantic, at least 40 employees chose early

          7  retirement, only because of the announced closings.

          8  They had intended to stay several years, if not

          9  more, longer, with Bell Atlantic, but they felt

         10  under the circumstances that they had no choice but

         11  to put in for early retirement. Admittedly, some of

         12  those workers in these offices took the incentive

         13  and volunteered to retire, not because of the office

         14  closings, but because that is what they wanted.

         15                 And many others decided to take

         16  retirement because of a combination of factors - the

         17  office is closing and maybe it would be a good idea,

         18  and that was the thing that put them over the edge.

         19                 But CWA Local 1100 did a survey and

         20  they found that 40 women told them that if it were

         21  not for the closing of those offices, they would not

         22  have retired.

         23                 In the legal language of Board Law,

         24  Bell Atlantic's unilateral closing of the two

         25  offices is called a fait accompli, it was a done
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          2  deal.

          3                 CWA was never given a meaningful

          4  opportunity to bargain. The employer made its

          5  announcement only two hours after advising the

          6  union, and as a result, as one worker said, was that

          7  workers got up and rushed to the fax machines to put

          8  in their retirement papers and they put in those

          9  retirement papers without an option of recision.

         10                 Now, Bell Atlantic is not here today,

         11  but I will tell you what their defense is at the

         12  National Labor Relations Board.

         13                 What they said was that they had to

         14  do this because the option of electing the six in

         15  six retirement offer expired on September 8th, and

         16  they felt that the workers were entitled to know

         17  that their offers were going to be closed before

         18  they made a determination on whether not to elect

         19  early retirement.

         20                 I believe this argument is totally

         21  without merit. The violation of the federal labor

         22  law that I have described occurred because Bell

         23  Atlantic didn't give the union the opportunity to

         24  bargain in a meaningful way before they made an

         25  announcement and had the workers act on that
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          2  announcement.

          3                 Bell Atlantic, as I told you, Bell

          4  Atlantic actions took place, or actually other

          5  testimony has told you, it took place only two weeks

          6  after a new collective bargaining agreement had been

          7  signed.

          8                 That collective bargaining agreement

          9  took eight and a half months to negotiate. A major

         10  issue during bargaining had been the six and six and

         11  its impact on the company.

         12                 In bargaining the Local 1100

         13  agreement, which is for the accounting unit, which

         14  is about 430 people, they have their own agreement,

         15  and they bargained many issues in that agreement

         16  that would help the company keep employees on the

         17  payroll. And these items included an upgrade to

         18  everyone in the unit, everyone in that unit was

         19  upgraded, and as Gail Murcott has told you, they

         20  each received an increase of pay of $60 to $100 a

         21  piece.

         22                 They got enhanced pension benefits,

         23  so if they stay on the payroll for a certain period

         24  of time, their payroll benefits would increase

         25  anyway. And they also got paid a premium pay for

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            81

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  training new employees coming into these jobs. And

          3  as Gail has told you, she considered this to be the

          4  best contract they had ever negotiated.

          5                 Bargaining over the potential closing

          6  of those two offices should have been on the table

          7  during those eight and a half months. It should have

          8  been part of the mix. But instead, Bell Atlantic

          9  announced the closing after the contract was signed.

         10  And by doing that, they denied the union leverage to

         11  convince them not to do it, because now the union

         12  had a contract, the strike was over, people were

         13  back at work. They also violated federal labor laws,

         14  and perhaps most cynically of all, what they did was

         15  they negated the gain the union had won in the new

         16  contract, which the union had struck two days for.

         17                 As you have heard, the unit has been

         18  decimated with the loss of 203 jobs, it was being

         19  cut in half. Upgrades to the 200 jobs is irrelevant

         20  because there is no one there to get them, so it

         21  doesn't matter if they are going to pay more because

         22  the jobs don't exist, and training pay is

         23  meaningless if there are no new employees to be

         24  trained.

         25                 So, as I said, they effectively
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          2  negated the benefits of that community.

          3                 Now, Region 2 of the National Labor

          4  Relations Board agrees with CWA that Bell Atlantic

          5  actions violated the act and issued a complaint. And

          6  I think as has been mentioned here, there was a

          7  trial that took place last week, it began on October

          8  8th and it ran through three days.

          9                 Both sides have rested, although an

         10  additional date will be scheduled for rebuttal. I

         11  will tell you that although I think the trial went

         12  very well, and I am optimistic about the outcome,

         13  after the record is closed there will be briefs,

         14  then their ALJ will render a decision, then either

         15  side can appeal to the National Labor Relations

         16  Board in Washington, and then either side can appeal

         17  through the federal court.

         18                 It may be years until we get a final

         19  decision on this labor practice case, which is

         20  unfortunately the tragedy of how long it takes these

         21  things to move their way through the system.

         22                 But I want to, before I end my

         23  remarks, I want to share with you a couple of things

         24  that actually came up during the trial.

         25                 During the trial the documents were
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          2  produced by Bell Atlantic pursuant to subpoena, and

          3  several of those documents were very revealing. They

          4  showed that the company had begun planning to close

          5  those offices in February of 1998, fully six months

          6  before they told the union, and as stated, they did

          7  not tell the union about their plans all the way

          8  through this bargaining.

          9                 Another document was obtained through

         10  subpoena, which is perhaps the most interesting for

         11  this proceeding, because it revealed the attitude of

         12  Bell Atlantic to this body, because it referred to

         13  this body, as other politicians, as outside

         14  interveners.

         15                 In August, before announcing the

         16  closing to the union or to the workers involved,

         17  there was a meeting of the management people

         18  involved in the decision, and they developed a game

         19  plan to effectuate the closing, and part of that

         20  plan included innoculating upper management from

         21  pressures from what they called to be outside

         22  interveners, politicians and religious leaders.

         23                 They knew that the community would be

         24  upset and they didn't care. The plan was not to

         25  consider community concerns, but to be sure that
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          2  Bell Atlantic could weather the storm.

          3                 We hope that your anger will be

          4  greater than their resistance, and that you, along

          5  with others, will help us stop this closing.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: You are going

          8  to highlight this, sir?

          9                 MR. PERES: No, I am going to speak on

         10  another matter.

         11                 My name is Kenneth Peres, I am a Ph.D

         12  economist with 21 years experience in the field, and

         13  for the past 11 years I have been Research Director

         14  of the Communications Workers of America, District

         15  1, and one of my responsibilities has been to

         16  represent CWA before the Public Service Commission.

         17                 Now, there has been an interesting

         18  debate that took place here earlier, concerning the

         19  power of the City Council over Bell Atlantic's

         20  decision to relocate jobs out of state and out of

         21  city. And on one hand you have Council Member Golden

         22  saying there is nothing the Council can do, we share

         23  your pain; on the other side was examples of moral

         24  suasion, and the use of the franchise, that

         25  Councilwoman Freed mentioned.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: There are many

          3  different things that the City can do.

          4                 MR. PERES: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Not only

          6  franchise agreements, but tax abatements in the

          7  future, property holdings, all kinds of things that

          8  we can do, and we have done it.

          9                 For instance, when it came to issues

         10  that are way of the Council purview, such as

         11  Ireland, Northern Ireland issue and South African

         12  issue, we, this City, through this Council and the

         13  Comptroller's Office held back billions of dollars

         14  of investments from the City pension fund to

         15  companies, private enterprises who deal with those

         16  foreign, with those countries, South Africa and

         17  Northern Ireland and it worked. So, this City here,

         18  and this Council, this government, has tremendous

         19  amounts of power because we have the money and we

         20  have the influence.

         21                 MR. PERES: Great.

         22                 I want to add one more arrow to the

         23  quiver of the weapons that the City Council can use,

         24  and that concerns the Public Service Commission

         25  order, that has been referred to by you and Council
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          2  Member Quinn earlier, and in this testimony I want

          3  to look at the agreement that Bell Atlantic made

          4  with the PSC not to transfer major functions out of

          5  the state, I want to look at how they violated that

          6  agreement, and CWA formally wants to ask the City

          7  Council to join us in a petition to the PSC to

          8  ensure that they order Bell Atlantic to comply with

          9  the PSC order previously.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All right, we

         11  certainly would look at that. Our counsel is here,

         12  but we certainly would need correspondence from you

         13  to the City Council, Speaker Vallone, myself, as

         14  Chairman of this Committee, and so our Legal

         15  Division can look at it.

         16                 MR. PERES: Okay.

         17                 Appended to this testimony is a draft

         18  petition that will be filed with the PSC subject to

         19  your support and other people's support and whatever

         20  changes need to be made.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         22  say the Chair and myself have been discussing the

         23  idea of introducing a resolution in the Council

         24  directed at the PSC, so this is very helpful in the

         25  Committee's work in best focusing the way we could

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            87

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  pressure the PSC.

          3                 MR. PERES: Good.

          4                 I will just go a little into the

          5  background of PSC order, what it states and how Bell

          6  Atlantic violated it, and why the City Council

          7  support would be very important.

          8                 Any local telephone company operated

          9  in New York have to obtain the approval of the

         10  Public Service Commission for any major change in

         11  the ownership of its assets. So, when Bell Atlantic

         12  and NYNEX decided to merge they had to petition the

         13  Public Service Commission for its approval. If they

         14  did not get the approval of the New York State

         15  Public Service Commission, the merger would not have

         16  taken place.

         17                 Bell Atlantic petitioned, NYNEX

         18  petitioned the Public Service Commission, the Public

         19  Service Commission initiated a proper proceeding and

         20  the purpose generally of those proceedings is to

         21  establish a record in which the expected impact of

         22  the' merger, would be analyzed in terms of telephone

         23  rates, service quality, infrastructure and the

         24  state's economy. Economic development was definitely

         25  a major concern.
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          2                 Based on this record, the PSC had to

          3  judge whether that merger would be in the public

          4  interest. The PSC had options, it could say no, we

          5  deny the petition and the merger would have

          6  collapsed, they could say, yes, we fully agree and

          7  you can do whatever you want, or they could approve

          8  the merger subject to certain conditions, and the

          9  PSC chose that latter option.

         10                 And the first specific condition set

         11  by the PSC order approving the merger was, and you

         12  quoted it earlier, and the merge company shall

         13  establish its permanent headquarters in New York

         14  City and existing major New York or NYNEX functions

         15  shall not be relocated outside of New York State.

         16                 This condition in the body of the

         17  order, became obvious, wanted to establish Bell

         18  Atlantic's corporate commitment to New York State's

         19  economy. And according to the PSC order, it wasn't

         20  simply enough for Bell Atlantic to locate the merged

         21  company's corporate headquarters in New York City,

         22  they wanted something more. They determined that New

         23  York needed protection in the face of post merger

         24  incentives to transfer corporations, corporate

         25  functions out of state.
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          2                 We all know that mergers take place,

          3  there are incentives to increase profits, cut costs

          4  and that often entails transfer of functions. PSC

          5  recognized that, and basically saw that the merger

          6  would harm New York if corporate functions

          7  historically located here were transferred out of

          8  state, and they were right to have that fear.

          9                 In the years after the merger was

         10  approved, Bell Atlantic apparently decided to comply

         11  only selectively with these conditions. It did

         12  relocate corporate headquarters from Philadelphia to

         13  New York, but Bell Atlantic, as was shown earlier,

         14  blatantly disregarded the second provision of that

         15  condition by transferring two major functions

         16  outside of the state, specifically they transferred

         17  their payroll operations from Manhattan to

         18  Pennsylvania, and its customer bill revenue

         19  operations from Brooklyn to Massachusetts.

         20                 This relocation of these functions

         21  out of state clearly violates the commission's order

         22  approving the merger, and these are major corporate

         23  functions, as Council Member Quinn referred to

         24  earlier.

         25                 The customer billing accounts
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          2  operation specifically include the correction of

          3  errors that the layer prevent accurate bills from

          4  being produced, they processed customer bill

          5  adjustments such as refunds, and they tracked

          6  individual and aggregate revenue flows each month.

          7                 The customer billing revenue account

          8  operation is a major function for a public utility

          9  that must bill millions of customers each month. In

         10  fact, the entire revenue stream from Bell Atlantic's

         11  business and residential operations depends upon the

         12  accurate and timely processing of billing accounts

         13  and the tracking of revenue flows each month. It is

         14  a major function.

         15                 Payroll operations include the

         16  maintenance of all employee payroll records, the

         17  production of paychecks, the remittence reporting of

         18  tax and payroll reductions. Obviously any

         19  corporation, including Bell Atlantic, cannot operate

         20  unless these payroll functions are successfully

         21  completed. It is a major function.

         22                 And these major functions, the

         23  payroll, the customer billing and revenue operators

         24  for New York Tel and NYNEX have always been located

         25  in New York City, and these functions remained in
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          2  New York City once the merger took place, at 1166

          3  Avenue of the Americas and 395 Flatbush Avenue,

          4  until this spring.

          5                 Fifty-five workers conducted the

          6  entire payroll operation, and 148 workers conducted

          7  the entire customer billing revenue accounts

          8  operations for Bell Atlantic North. Major functions,

          9  historically and currently at the time of the order

         10  that were located in New York State and specifically

         11  in New York City.

         12                 However, beginning on April 1st, Bell

         13  Atlantic began to transfer the vast majority of

         14  specific payroll and customer billing revenue

         15  account functions out of New York City, which was in

         16  clear violation of the PSC order.

         17                 Now, not only did Bell Atlantic fail

         18  to comply with the PSC merger order, but adding

         19  insult to injury, the company misrepresented its

         20  plans to the PSC. In a separate March 29th, 1999

         21  petition to the PSC, Bell Atlantic sought approval

         22  of its sale of 1166 Avenue of the Americas, they had

         23  to get approval for that.

         24                 In that petition Bell Atlantic stated

         25  all work functions moved out of 1166 have been or
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          2  will be moved to other locations in New York State.

          3                 Clearly, the company was well aware

          4  of the conditions laid down by the PSC at the time

          5  of the merger where they wouldn't relocate major

          6  functions out of state, but just as clearly Bell

          7  Atlantic knew at the time of its March 29th petition

          8  to the PSC, that functions located at 1166 would be

          9  transferred to Pennsylvania.

         10                 After all, Bell Atlantic told the

         11  union of its plans to transfer these jobs and its

         12  function in August '98, and at no time did Bell

         13  Atlantic formally ask the PSC for a waiver of the

         14  merger approval order that prohibited such

         15  transfers.

         16                 Instead, Bell Atlantic falsely

         17  reassured the PSC in its March 29th petition that

         18  all of the functions located at 1166 Avenue of the

         19  Americas remain in New York State.

         20                 And just a few days after the

         21  company's statement in its March 29th petition, Bell

         22  Atlantic started the process of transferring payroll

         23  functions from 1166 to Upper Darby, Pennsylvania.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Let me ask you

         25  something.
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          2                 Now, this is going before the Judge,

          3  right?

          4                 MR. PERES: Pardon?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: This is going

          6  before the judge.

          7                 MR. PERES: When we file this

          8  petition, it will go before the Public Service

          9  Commission.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Now, obviously

         11  they have their story to tell, but the way you are

         12  explaining this, and all of these very pragmatic

         13  approach, it seems like Bell Atlantic, are they

         14  stupid? I mean, is anybody paying attention over

         15  there?

         16                 I mean, if they agreed to all of this

         17  merger, this, that and the other thing, in agreeing

         18  to the PSC's orders, and then they actually go and

         19  violate them, I just don't understand it, obviously

         20  you are going to win this right? If you lose, what

         21  would you lose on? What reason would you lose this

         22  case?

         23                 MR. PERES: Well, it comes down also

         24  to an issue of political power and whether the

         25  Public Service Commission, once this petition is
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          2  filed, will pay attention to it.

          3                 It is not just a question of the

          4  merits of the case, it is the question of what

          5  pressure is on the PSC to make sure that they judge

          6  in terms of the merit of the case. That is one

          7  reason we are asking the New York City Council to

          8  sign on with us, because the importance of an

          9  institution and a group of the New York City Council

         10  is very important, would have an extremely

         11  efficacious effect on the Public Service Commission.

         12  If we file, we are union, we are up against Bell

         13  Atlantic, which is one of the major corporations in

         14  the State of New York, much less the nation of the

         15  United States, and we need assistance on this.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All right.

         17  Continue.

         18                 MR. PERES: We are obviously concerned

         19  about the loss of jobs, the movement of workers in

         20  the lower grade job titles, forced early retirement

         21  of our members who wanted to continue working in

         22  their existing jobs, but we are also concerned with

         23  the transfer of these functions and these operations

         24  out of state. And the transfer of these operations

         25  out of state means that the City's economy will no
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          2  longer benefit from any future job or development in

          3  these functional areas.

          4                 In this case the company not only

          5  eliminated 203 existing jobs, but it eliminated

          6  future jobs by transferring the functions and the

          7  work itself out of state, and this was an item that

          8  Council Member Quinn raised right in her opening

          9  statement about the future jobs.

         10                 Bell Atlantic is allowed to transfer

         11  these functions out of New York, what will prevent

         12  the company from transferring other functions out of

         13  state, after all, this is an age of mergers, and

         14  Bell Atlantic currently has another merger pending

         15  with GTE, which is not so much located in New York

         16  State. So, what pressure can we have on Bell

         17  Atlantic to have a countervailing pressure there.

         18  How will the City Council protect these other

         19  corporate functions, which are hundreds, if not

         20  thousands, of associated jobs.

         21                 Now, in the next few weeks, as I said

         22  earlier, we plan to file the attached petition,

         23  which we have a copy of, urging the PSC to compel

         24  Bell Atlantic to comply with its March 21st, '97

         25  order, by returning all payroll and customer billing
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          2  functions in work to New York State. We ask you to

          3  join in that petition.

          4                 Now, our primary goal is to return to

          5  work in New York. But in the alternative, if PSC

          6  decides not to push it or the Bell Atlantic does not

          7  comply, we are asking the PSC to follow New York

          8  Statute and fine Bell Atlantic $100,000 a day for

          9  each occurrence in which it fails to comply with the

         10  PSC order, and I have the citation and the petition.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Can't we do

         12  both?

         13                 MR. PERES: You can do both. Let's

         14  have it all.

         15                 In this case Bell Atlantic could be

         16  find $200,000 a day and we say since April 1st, the

         17  day when they initiated the action to transfer major

         18  functions out of New York State.

         19                 As I said, action by the New York

         20  City Council will be very important, 203 jobs at

         21  issue may not sound like a lot given the size of

         22  Bell Atlantic, but they are good paying, family

         23  supporting jobs, outstanding benefits located in

         24  communities where such jobs are few and far between,

         25  and they provide significant job opportunities,
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          2  primarily for older women of color, as you heard

          3  reference before.

          4                 It is interesting that the work is

          5  being transferred to offices in Pennsylvania and

          6  Massachusetts where the workforce is 58 percent and

          7  90 percent white respectively.

          8                 Now, surely both CWA and the New York

          9  City Council should do everything in our power to

         10  ensure Bell Atlantic honor its public pledges and

         11  return these jobs to our City. We are all concerned

         12  about the well-being, not just for our

         13  constituencies but also of our entire community.

         14                 Let's do the right thing. Please join

         15  us in the petition. The action, if successful, will

         16  not only protect 203 New York City jobs, not only

         17  protect payroll and customer billing functions

         18  located in New York City, not only protect all other

         19  major Bell Atlantic corporate functions located in

         20  New York and New York City, but also protect our

         21  communities from the abuse of corporate power.

         22                 This is one I think we can win if we

         23  provide enough political pressure on the PSC, and we

         24  can win it for the workers and communities and

         25  people who live in New York, if we join together in
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          2  this.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you very

          5  much for your testimony.

          6                 Councilwoman, before I adjourn the

          7  hearing, do you have anything to say?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just had a

          9  couple of questions, if that is okay, Mr. Chair?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You said that

         12  you were going to be filing, et cetera, et cetera,

         13  soon; just give me a little better sense of the time

         14  frame? So if the Council were to sign onto the

         15  petition, that would need to be done in two weeks,

         16  three weeks?

         17                 MR. PERES: We would like it within

         18  two weeks, three weeks at the latest.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         20                 MR. PERES: Because time is of

         21  concern.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And the PSC,

         23  and I apologize for not knowing this, is appointed

         24  by the Governor?

         25                 MR. PERES: Yes, with the consent of
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          2  the Senate.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Not the

          4  assembly, just the Senate?

          5                 MR. PERES: Yes, that is correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just wanted

          7  to say, you know, it is a great way to negotiate,

          8  and I say that with sarcasm, you can give away the

          9  store, since you have already in fact sold the

         10  store, so you are giving away nothing at all.

         11                 MS. SEMEL: Ice in winter.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes, exactly.

         13                 I just want to say before we adjourn,

         14  again, I want to thank the Chair for having this

         15  hearing. I want to thank him for having it, one,

         16  because of the importance citywide, and to myself

         17  personally because, as I mentioned, 50 or so of

         18  these jobs are in my district and you mentioned

         19  these are jobs that are hard to find, and the

         20  neighborhood these are in, Hell's Kitchen, Clinton,

         21  is a neighborhood in my district that is under

         22  tremendous pressure to be gentrified, the people who

         23  live there are under tremendous pressure to move out

         24  and create space where richer people can live in

         25  luxury buildings that they will build when they take
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          2  away the tenements that the working live in. So,

          3  this is a very, very important issue for CWA to have

          4  support, but also for the residents of my district

          5  to know that they don't stand alone in their fight

          6  against gentrification, and I just want to assure

          7  CWA and others that the Council, under the

          8  leadership of Chair O'Donovan we will follow up

          9  aggressively on this, as we discussed earlier, a

         10  harsh letter to Bell Atlantic for not coming, the

         11  petition issue, et cetera, that you have really the

         12  full support of the leadership of this Committee and

         13  the Council on this. And, you know, Ronnie Eldridge

         14  was kind of Marty Golden, I slipped him a note that

         15  said I hope your office doesn't want any more phone

         16  service. So, him aside, I think we will continue to

         17  talk and there will be a lot that we will do to help

         18  you create that political pressure.

         19                 And I just want to say lastly, I

         20  agree with you, I believe we can win this, but God

         21  forbid, even if we lose this, in my opinion we

         22  should never -- not one job should be lost in the

         23  City of New York without a fight. We should never go

         24  down without fighting and the more we fight, whether

         25  we win or lose, the less they will come back to hit
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          2  us again. So, thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you very

          4  much. This hearing is adjourned.

          5                 MS. SEMEL: Thank you.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 3:10 p.m.)
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